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Review Report of | ndependent Accountants Translated from Chinese

PWCR11000109
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Gaméaxgital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheets of Gamania Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries aSegtember 30, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income andsif taws for the nine-month periods
then ended. These consolidated financial stateamarg the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is toresp a conclusion on these
consolidated financial statements based on ouewneyi

Except as explained in the following paragraph, rewews were made in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards N&&, “Review of Financial
Statements” in the Republic of China. A review sists principally of inquiries of
company personnel and analytical procedures appieedfinancial data. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit in acurd with generally accepted auditing
standards in the Republic of China, the objectivevhich is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements takema agole. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

As described in Note 1(2), the consolidated finahstatements include unreviewed
financial statements of certain consolidated suasas, which statements reflect total
assets of $1,713,363 thousand and $1,261,343 thdwsaof September 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively, and total operating revenue&3pf99,298 thousand and $1,068,681
thousand for the nine-month periods then endedpertely. In addition, as
explained in Note 4(7), the consolidated financshtements include long-term
investments accounted for under the equity metmoduating to $5,647 thousand and
$4,367 thousand as of September 30, 2011 and 2@%pectively, and the related
investment loss was $4,156 thousand and $5,39Gamolufor the nine-month periods
then ended, respectively. These amounts and fobemation disclosed in Note 11
were based on their respective financial stateme&rtch were not reviewed by
independent accountants.



Based on our reviews, except for the effect of sadjustments, if any, as might have
been determined to be necessary had the finantaéénsents of these investee
companies been reviewed by independent accounganexplained in the preceding
paragraph, we are not aware of any material madiéos that should be made to the
consolidated financial statements referred to aliwweder for them to be in conformity

with the “Guidelines Governing the Preparation ahafcial Reports by Securities

Issuers” and generally accepted accounting priesipl the Republic of China.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

October 24, 2011

The accompanying consolidated financial statemargsnot intended to present the
financial position and results of operations andghcdlows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles and practysaserally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. eTBtandards, procedures and
practices utilized in the Republic of China govamithe audit of such consolidated
financial statements may differ from those gengralccepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. céuingly, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements and review repbthe independent accountants are
not intended for use by those who are not informledut the accounting principles or
review standards generally accepted in the Repuabli€hina, and their applications in
practice.

As the consolidated financial statements are tlpaesibility of the management,
PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any lialiditthe use of, or reliance on, the
English translation or for any errors or misundamgings that may derive from the
translation.



ASSETS

Current Asse!
Cash and cash equivalents (Note ¢
Notes receivabl- third partie — net (Note 42))
Accounts receivab - third parties— net (Note 43))
Other receivable¢ (Note 414))
Inventorie: — net(Note 44))
Prepaid expense
Deferred income tax ass — current (Note 4(4))
Other current asst

Long-term Investment
Financial assets at fair value through profit @s— nor-current(Note 45))
Financial assets carried at (- nor-current(Note 46))
Long-term investmen — accounted for undethe equity metho (Note 47))

Property, Plant and Equipm — net (Notes 48) and ()
Cos
Lanc
Buildings
Machinery and equipme
Transportation equipme
Office equipmer
Leasehold improvemer
Other equipmel
Total Cos
Less: Accumulated depreciat
Accumulatecimpairmen
Construction in progress and prepients for equipmen

IntangibleAsset
Trademar
Goodwill
Deferred pension co(Note 415))
Other intangible asse- net(Note 49))

Other Asses
Refundable depos i
Deferred charge— net(Notes4(10) and 5(2
Deferred income tax ass — nor-currert (Note 414))
Other asse- otheis (Notes 415))

TOTAL ASSETS

GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

—~—

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30,
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

(UNAUDITED)
2011 2010
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilitie
$ 1,504,704 $ 1,160,759 Shor-term loans (Note 41))
113,165 161,462 Notes payab - third partie:
1,219,128 1,286,083 Accounts payab - third partie:
33,40 32,863 Accounts payabl- related peties (Note 5(2))
118,020 40,324 Income tax payable (Note14))
94,026 81,139 Accrued expenses (Note -8))
1,637 12,095 Other payabls
23,528 3,348 Unearned revenue collected in advi
3,107,611 2,778,073 Current portion of lon-term oars (Note 4(3))
Other current liabilitie
2,850 2,850
124,294 114,294 Long-term Liabilities
5,647 4,367 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss - nor-curren
132,791 121,511 (Note 4(22))
Long-term loans (Note 43))
157,375 147,751 Other Liabilities
217,508 185,113 Accrued pension liabilities (Note 45))
879,491 691,857 Guarantee depos
- 1,002 Deferred income tax liabilitie- nor-current (Note 4(:4))
203,311 173,617 Other liabilities- othel
73,616 46,920
21,426 13,838 Total Liabilities
1,552,727 1,260,098
758,820) ( 647,241)  Stockholders' Equi
4,150) ( 4,390) Common stoc
14,405 44,402 Common stock (Note)
804,162 652,869 Stock subscriptions received in adva(Note £(21))
Capital reserve (Note 46))
4,715 - Paic-in capital in excess of ¢
86,814 76,477 Additional paic-in capital- treasury stock transactic
1,475 1,292 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipt
4,660 159 Retained earnini
97,664 77,928 Legal reservi(Notes 4(17) and (:8))
Retained earnin¢(Notes 4114) and (18)
54,949 53,552 Other adjustments to stockholc’ equity
392,988 607,389 Cumulative translation adjustme
29,583 25,524 Unrealized net los:
9,151 8,440 Treasury stock (Note 20))
486,671 694,905
Minority interes
Total Stockholders' Equi
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (N(7)
$ 4,628,899 $ 4,325,286 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUTY

The accompanying notes are an integral part otthessolidated financial statements.
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2011 2010
$ 102,548 $ 183,195
6.726 1,406
491,980 246.062
69.571 -
63.329 62.547
446.310 406,792
132,740 296.350
303,917 381.004
25,962 35,300
29,867 12.661
1.762.950 1.625.317
3,426 2,805
11.136 34,822
14.562 37.627
10,307 10,240

6 6

2,001 -

378 440
12.692 10,686
1.790.204 1.673.630
1,564,011 1,656,376
3.504 644
831,892 853,598
24,234 -
201 21
140,910 117,650
203,436 335,536
40,600 36,265
1,126) ( 565)

- (__ 370,182)
2,807,682 2,629,543
31,013 22.113
2.838.695 2.651.656
$ 4.628.899 $ 4.325.286




GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

(UNAUDITED)
2011 2010
Operating revenu
Sales revent $ 5,345,791 $ 4,393,554
Salesreturn: ( 6,527) ( 89,140)
Sales allowances ( 17,288) ( 5,218)
Net sales reven! 5,321,976 4,299,196
Service revenue 37,727 71,028
Total operating revenu 5,359,703 4,370,224
Operating cos
Cost of goods sold (Notes 4(22) and 5(2)) ( 3,104,805) ( 2,231,050)
Gross profit 2,254,898 2,139,174
Operating expenses (N«s 4(22) and 5(2))
Selling expense ( 510,618) ( 633,2895)
General and administrative exper ( 1,012,258) ( 762,654)
Research and development expenses ( 446,641) ( 346,318)
Total operating expenses ( 1,969,517) ( 1,742,257)
Operating income 285,381 396,917
Non-operating incornr
Interest incom 2,617 1,359
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipt 52 -
Foreign exchange g¢ - 4,747
Rental incom 14,097 1,648
Gain on adjustment of financial as« (Note 4(12)) 602 549
Miscellaneous income 17,550 7,133
Total non-operating income 34,918 15,436
Non-operating expens
Interest expens: ( 1,818) ( 3,829)
Investment loss accounted for under the equity atkth
(Note 4(7) ( 4,156) ( 5,390)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equip! - ( 5,462)
Foreign exchange loss ( 6,497) -
Miscellaneous losses ( 31,123) ( 77,742)
Total non-operating expenses ( 43,594) ( 92,423)
Income before income te 276,705 319,930
Income tax expense (Note 4(14)) ( 101,961) ( 150,562)
Consolidated net income $ 174,744 $ 169,368
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Compa $ 172,934 $ 169,221
Minority interest 1,810 147
$ 174,744 $ 169.368
2011 2010
Before After Before After
Basic earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 4(19)) income tax income tax income tax income tax
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company § 1.7  §$ 1.12  §$ 2.10 $ 1.11
Minority interest income 0.01 0.01 - -
Consolidated net income $ 1.79 § 1.13 § 2.10 $ 1.11

Diluted earnings per share (in dollars) (Note 4)19)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company § 1.74  § 1.10 $ 2.04 $ 1.08
Minority interest income 0.01 0.01 - -
Consolidated net income $ 1.75  § 1.11 § 2.04 $ 1.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
See review report of independent accountants dactcber 24, 2011.



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash flows from operating activiti
Consolidated et incom

(UNAUDITED)

Adjustments to reconci consolidate netincometo net cash

provided by operating activiti:
Gain onvaluatior of financial asse

(Reversal o allowanci) provisionfor sale: return: (

Provision for doubtful accour

Provision fordecline in market valuof inventories
Investment loss accounted for unthe equity metho

Depreciation and amortizati

(Gair) loss on disposal ofroperty, plant and equipmet (

Deferred char¢s charged to other Is
Deferred income tax ass

Compensation cost of treasury stock trarions

Changs in assets and liabilitie
(Increase) decrease il

Financial assets at fair value through pror

loss— curren
Notes receivab — third partie:

Accounts receivab — third partie!

Other receivable¢ — third parties
Inventorie!
Prepaid expens
Other current asse¢

Increas (decrease) il
Notes payab - third partie:
Accounts payab - third partie:

~ A~~~ A~

Accounts payab - related paies

Income tax payab
Accrued expense
Other payable — third partie:
Unearned revenue collected in
Other current liabilitie
Accrued pension liabilitie

Net cash provided | operating activitie

ance

2011 2010
$ 174,744 $ 169,368
602) 549)
367) 3,227
9,058 14,707
1,083 8,171
4,156 5,390
347,907 351,550
52) 5,462
30,042 66,170
19,925 70,142
40,463 -
755 503
11,244 ( 48,459)
33,130) 181,565)
4,091) 6,364
89,109) 12,089
41,783)  ( 46,546)
19,219)  ( 702)
6,671 ( 8,650)
254,722 29,331
69,571 -
24,875 49,965
9,299 20,289
186,211) 135,217
76,536 15,931
19,699 ( 46,172)
766 557
726,952 631,790

(Continued on next page)



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

(UNAUDITED)
2011
Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in financial assets carried at cost —qumrent ($ 10,000)
Increase in minority interest acquisition price -
Decrease in other financial assets — current -
Increas in financialasset at fair value through profit ' loss —

non-current
Increase in lon-term investmeis — subsidiary acquisitio

price ( 7,400)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment ( 218,525)
Increase in deferred charges ( 74,514)
Proceeds froi disposal of property, pla, andequipmer anc

deferred chargs 2,812
Increase in refundable deposits, net ( 6,752)
Increase in Intangible assets ( 2,342)
Increase in other assets — other ( 25)

Increase irfinancial liabilities at fair value through profit
loss — nor-curren
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

( 316,746)

(Decrease) increase in short-term loans ( 52,434)
(Decrease) increase in long-term loans ( 21,611)
Decrease in guarantee deposits -
Decrease in other liabilities — other ( 374)
Employee stock options to be exercised 54,758
Payment of cash dividends ( 186,035)
Treasury stock transactions 19,351
Changes in minority interest ( 673)

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbasnts

( 187,018)

22,836

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 246,024
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,258,680
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $  1.504,704
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 1,834
Income taxes $ 57,161
Cash paid for the acquisition of property, pland @aquipment
Property, plant and equipment acquired $ 196,680
Payable at end of the period ( 15,884)
Payable at beginning of the period 37,729
Cash paid $ 218,525

2010

( 38,337)
2,000

( 2,850)

( 116)
( 211,221)
( 285,460)

188
( 6,462)

( 15)

2,850

( 539,423)

37,642
20,129
( 374)
( 13)
103,913
( 197,999)

1,919
( 34,783)

( 1,836)

55,748

1,105,011

$ 1,160,759

$ 3,664

$ 24,029

$ 212,794
( 12,072)

10,499

$ 211,221

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

See review report of independent accountants dattcber 24, 2011.



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)
(UNAUDITED)
1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

(1) Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the Compawas incorporated in June
1995 under the provisions of the Company Law ofRlepublic of China (R.O.C.) as
a company limited by shares. As of September G012the total authorized capital
was $2,500,000, consisting of 250 million sharescafimon stock (including 12
million shares of employee stock options), at ayadne of $10 (NT dollars) per share,
and the issued and outstanding capital was $1,564,0The Company is engaged in
software services. As of September 30, 2011, tbe@any and its consolidated
subsidiaries had approximately 1,730 employees.

(2) Consolidated subsidiaries

% of shares held as

A) of SeptembeB0
Name of company Relationship Main activities 2011 2010

Gamania Holdings Ltd. Note 1 |nvestment holding company 100% 100%

Gamania International Holdings  Note 2 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Ltd.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 3 Design and sales of software; 100% 100%
(Japan) Co., Ltd. sales of hardware

Gamania China Holdings Ltd. Note 3 Investment imgjsl 98.56% 98.15%

Gamania Western Holdings Ltd. Note 3 Investmendingls 100% 100%

Gamania Netherlands Holdings  Note 3 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Cooperatief U.A.

Firedog Studio Company Ltd. Note 3 Developmerdajtware, 100% -

design and sales of software

Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Note 3  Software and electronic 100%
Company Ltd. information services and sales

Gamania Digital Entertainment ~ Note 4  Design and sales of software 98.56% 98.15%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.

Gamania Sino Holdings Co., Ltd. Note 4 Investment holding 98.56%98.15%

Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 5 Design and sales of software 100% 100%
(Europe) B.V.

Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 6 Design and sales of software 100% 100%
(U.S.)) Co., Ltd.



% of shares held as
of September 30

Name of company Relationship Main activities 2011 2010
Gamania Digital Entertainment Note 7 Design and sales of software 98.56%8.15%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
GameastorDigital Entertainmer  Note 1 Software services 99.28%99.28%
Co., Ltd. (Note 8)
Gamania Asia Investments Note 1 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Co., Ltd.
Gamania Korea Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and salesfiivare 100% 100%
FantasyFish Digital Game Cq Note 1 Design and research of softwar@9.75% 99.58%
Ltd.
Fundation Digital Entertainment  Note 1 Sale and publishing of 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. magazines and periodicals
Gamania Digital Entertainment ~ Note 1 Investment holdings 100%  100%
Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
Redgate Games Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and research of 100% 100%
software
Seedo Games Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and research of 100% 100%
software
Playcoo Co. Note 1 Design and research of 75.25% 75.25%
software
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Note 1  Animation production 51% -
Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Note 1 Software and electronic 100% -
information services and sales
Tornado Studio Co., Ltd. (Note 9) Note 3  Design and research of 100% -

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:

software

Majority-owned subsidiary

A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Hotgs Ltd.

A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania intional Holdings Ltd.
A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Ghkitoldings Ltd.

A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Netiinds Holdings Cooperatief U.A.
A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania VéestHoldings Ltd.
A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Siadings Co., Ltd.
Gameastor Digital Entertainment Co., Lfdrmerly Taiwan Index Co., Ltd., has

completed its change of registration in SeptemBan2
Note 9: Tornado Studio Co., Ltd., formerly Gama @arto., Ltd., has completed its change
of registration in August 2011.

B) The consolidated financial statements includeeviewed financial statements of certain
consolidated subsidiaries as of September 30, 20812010. The statements reflect total
assets of $1,713,363 and $1,261,343 as of Septe3h@011 and 2010, respectively, and
total operating revenues of $3,799,298 and $1,883f6r the nine-month periods then

ended, respectively.



(3) Changes in the consolidated subsidiaries:
No subsidiarywas deconsolidated from the consolidated finarst@ements during thane-
month periods ended September 30, 2011. The falipwivere majority-owned
subsidiaries that were newly included in the consbéd financial statements:
% of shares held as

of SeptembeB0
Name of company Relationship _ Main activities 2011 2010 Note
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Note 1 Animation production %1 - Note 5
Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Note 1 Software and electronid 00% - Note 4
information services
and sales
Firedog Studio Note 2 Design and research of 100% - Note 5
Company Ltd. software
Gash Plus (Hong Kong)  Note 2 Software and electronic 100% - Note 4
Company Ltd. information services
and sales
Tornado Studio Co., Ltd. Note2  Design andresearch  100% - Note 3
and development of
software

Note 1: Majority-owned subsidiary.
Note 2: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania intgional Holdings Ltd.
Note 3: The company was established in the secoardar of 2011.
Note 4: The company was established in the firattgn of 2011.
Note 5: The company was established in the fourtirtqr of 2010.
(4) Majority-owned subsidiaries not being consdiédh None.
(5) Difference in accounting period among the Conypand the subsidiaries: None.
(6) Difference in the accounting policies adopted amahg Company and the
subsidiaries: None.
(7) Special operation risk of foreign subsidiaridsne.
(8) Nature and extent of the restrictions on fueighittance from subsidiaries to the parent
company: None.
(9) The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ earninggrithutions are restricted by enactment
or contract: None.
(10) The subsidiaries hold the company’s stockskanmls: None.
(11) Convertible bonds and new stocks are issudtidgubsidiaries: None.
(12) Other consequential items to the consolidétehcial statements: None.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Compard its subsidiaries (collectively
referred herein as the Group) are prepared in conitp with the “Guidelines Governing

the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securilesiers” and generally accepted
accounting principles in the Republic of China. eTdignificant accounting policies of
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the Group are summarized below:

(1) Principles of consolidation

A) All majority-owned subsidiaries or controlled erms#, which meet the criteria of
the amended Statement of Financial Accounting StasdNo. 7, “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, are included in the constdid financial statements.
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company preparegeyaconsolidated financial
statements.

B) The results of operations of a subsidiary are ohetlin the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. Underamended SFAS No. 7, the
results of operations of such subsidiary are exaduffom the consolidated
statements of income effective the date on whiehGbmpany loses control over
the subsidiary. For the initial year of adoptionSFAS No. 7, restatement of
prior year's financial statements is not required.

C) All significant intercompany balances and transatdi are eliminated in the
consolidation.

(2) Translation of financial statements of foreign sdiagies

Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidkariare translated into New Taiwan
dollars using the exchange rate at the balancet dfete; equity accounts are
translated at historical rates, except for begignmetained earnings which is
transferred from prior year's ending retained ew%i and profit and loss accounts
which are translated using the weighted-average. raExchange differences are
recorded as cumulative translation adjustmentsaaadncluded as a component of
stockholders' equity.

(3) Foreign currency transactions

The accounts of the Company and its subsidiaresmaintained in New Taiwan

dollars and functional currencies, respectively.ranBactions arising in foreign

currencies are translated into New Taiwan dollard functional currencies at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the drtio®is. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aemslated into New Taiwan dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the balance stedet Foreign exchange gains or
losses are included in the current year’s restleperations.

(4) Criteria for classifying current or non-current@ssand liabilities
A) Assets that meet one of the following criterige alassified as current assets;
otherwise they are classified as non-current assets
a) Assets arising from operating activities thag axpected to be realized or
consumed, or are intended to be sold within thenaboperating cycle;
b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
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c) Assets that are expected to be realized witlRinmbnths from the balance
sheet date; and

d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricésth and cash equivalents and
those that are to be exchanged and used to palabitities more than 12
months after the balance sheet date.

B) Liabilities that meet one of the following crite are classified as current liabilities;

otherwise they are classified as non-current litds!:

a) Liabilities arising from operating activitiesathare expected to be paid within
the normal operating cycle;

b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading actives;

c) Liabilities that are to be paid within 12 montinem the balance sheet date;
and

d) Liabilities for which the repayment date canbetextended unconditionally to
more than 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(5) Einancial assets at fair value through profit @slo

A)

B)

C)

Financial assets at fair value through profit asl@re recognized as of the trade
date at fair value for equity stocks. Financiadeds at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized as of the settlement datiilatvalue for bonds and
beneficiary certificates.

These financial instruments are subsequently ramedsand stated at fair value,
and the gain or loss is recognized in profit oslosThe fair value of listed stocks,
closed-end mutual funds and depositary receiptsaged on latest quoted fair
prices of the accounting period. The fair valueopen-end mutual funds is
based on the net asset value at the balance siteet d

Financial instruments that meet one of the follgyvoriteria are designated as
financial assets or financial liabilities at faalue through profit or loss:

a) The instrument is a hybrid instrument.

b) The instrument is designated as a financial tassdiability at fair value
through profit or loss in order to eliminate or stamtially reduce the
inconsistency in accounting measurement or reciognit

c) The instrument is managed in accordance withGhmup’s documented risk
management and investment strategies, and itsrpafwe is evaluated on a
fair value basis.
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(6) Financial assets carried at cost
A) Investments in unlisted equity instruments are gacxed initially at its fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attriblietato the acquisition of the
financial asset.
B) If there is any objective evidence that the finahcasset is impaired, the
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.uclk impairment loss cannot be
reversed.

(7) Notes and accounts receivable and other receivables

A) Receivables arising from the sale of goods or sesvito customers are
recognized as notes and accounts receivable. Q#eaivables are those
arising from transactions other than sale of gawdservices.

B) The Group measures notes and accounts receivatblether receivables based
on the aging and collectibility of receivables grast experience of bad debts.

C) The Group assesses whether objective evidence gfaiiment exists
individually for financial assets at the balanceethdate since January 1, 2011.
Once the objective evidence of impairment exists, i@pairment loss is
recognized.

(8) Inventories
The Group uses the perpetual inventory system laditiginal cost is the cost to
obtain the assets. Cost is determined using thghtezi-average method. The ending
balance of inventory is valued at the lower of cmshet realizable value based on
specific identification. The net realizable vala@letermined based on the estimated
selling price of an inventory item less the estedatosts of completion.

(9) Long-term equity investments accounted for underetuity method

A) Long-term equity investments in which the Groupdsomore than 20% of the
investee company’s voting shares or has the abibtyexercise significant
influence on the investee’s operational decisiores accounted for under the
equity method. The excess of the initial investmerdgt over the acquired net
asset value of the investee attributable to goddwiho longer amortized and
carries on tests of impairment every year. Retroa@djustment of the amount
of goodwill amortized in previous years is not regd.

B) Investment loss on the non-controlled entities awbich the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence is recomgd to the extent that the
amount of long-term investments in such investeesviitten down to zero.
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However, if the Company continues to provide enelments, guarantees or
financial support for such investees, the investm&@ss is recognized

continuously in proportion to the Company’s equitierest in such investees.

In the case of controlled entities, the Companypgezes all the losses incurred
by such entities that will not be covered by otlk&vckholders. When the
operations of such investees become profitable,Gbmpany recognizes the
profits until the amount of losses previously ratagd by the Company is fully

recovered.

C) Exchange differences arising from translation of financial statements of
overseas investee companies accounted for undeqthty method are recorded
as ‘“cumulative translation adjustments” under dhobler's equity, and
recognized in proportion to the percentage of shhetd by the Company.

D) The capital reserve and long-term investment ansowame adjusted by the
variance between the investment cost and net ast¢t® investee due to the
disproportionate acquisition or decrease of share®nnection with the capital
increase or decrease by the investee companyhe lbalance of capital reserve
from long-term investment is not sufficient, thetained earnings is debited.

(10) Property, plant and equipment

A) Depreciation is provided on the straight-line methwsing the estimated useful
lives of the assets plus one year as salvage vallilee subsidiaries’ property,
plant and equipment are depreciated on a straightbasis according to the
estimated useful lives of the assets less the atttnsalvage value, except for
leasehold improvements, which is based on the aongeriod of the asset.
The estimated useful lives are 3 to 55 years fddimgs and 2 to 5 years for the
other property, plant and equipment.

B) When an asset is sold or retired, the cost andnagl@ted depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts and the negugain or loss is included in
current non-operating income (expense).

C)Major renewals or betterments are capitalized apgretiated accordingly.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

(11) Deferred charges
A) Costs of software and copyrights are capitalizetianortized under the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives.
B)Royalty payments for operating online game software capitalized and
amortized based on the period of the contract ducked based on actual units
of play.
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(12) Other intangible assets
A) Franchises for game development are recorded aissbon cost and amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimaegtice life. Franchises could
be deducted from franchises payable amounting tdb@8ed on sales revenues.
B) Franchises for sales of on-line games are recomtedcquisition cost and
amortized over the estimated life of 1 years usimggstraight-line method.

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets

A) Impairment loss is recognized when the recoMeramount of an asset is less
than the book value due to changes in environmeotaurrences of some events.
Recoverable amount is the higher of net fair valuezalue in use of an asset.
Net fair value is the selling price of an assetam arm’s-length transaction
between knowledgeable and willing parties, lessctbsts of disposal. Value in
use is the present value of the future cash flowpeeted to be derived from an
asset.

B) If there is an indication that an asset hasverad its value of the impairment loss
recognized in the prior period, a gain is recogtitethe extent of the impairment
loss recognized. No recovery in impairment logee®gnized for goodwill.

(14) Share-based payment — employee compensation plan

A) The employee stock options granted from Janua?9@4 through December 31,
2007 are accounted for in accordance with EITF BQ-&ITF 92-071 and EITF
92-072, “Accounting for Employee Stock Options” @sescribed by the
Accounting Research and Development Foundation,®,Qlated March 17,
2003. Under the share-based employee compensdéiongompensation cost is
recognized using the intrinsic value method and fprona disclosures of net
income and earnings per share are prepared indsooee with the R.O.C. SFAS
No. 39, “Accounting for Share-based Payment®.

B) For the grant date of the share-based paymentragrdase set on or after January
1, 2008, the Company shall measure the servicesvest during the vesting
period by reference to the fair value of the equitgtruments granted and
account for those amounts as payroll expensesglthat period.

(15) Employees’ bonuses and directors’ and supervisersuneration
Effective January 1, 2008, pursuant to EITF 96-66the Accounting Research and
Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 16, 7200Accounting for
Employees’ Bonuses and Directors’ and SupervisBeshuneration”, the costs of
employees’ bonuses and directors’ and supervisersuneration are accounted for
as expenses and liabilities, provided that suchgmeition is required under legal or
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constructive obligation and the amounts can benaséid reasonably. However, if
the accrued amounts for employees’ bonuses andtalise and supervisors’

remuneration are significantly different from thetwal distributed amounts resolved
by the stockholders at their annual stockholder®etimg subsequently, the
differences shall be recognized as gain or loghenfollowing year. In addition,

according to EITF 97-127 of the Accounting Reseamhd Development

Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 31, 2008, “Criteoa Listed Companies in

Calculating the Number of Shares of Employees’ 6tBonus”, the Company

calculates the number of shares of employees’ sbharlus based on the closing
price of the Company's common stock at the previdayg of the stockholders’

meeting held in the year following the financigboeting year, and after taking into
account the effects of ex-rights and ex-dividends.

(16) Deferred income tax assets and income tax

A) Income tax of the Company and its domestic subsediaare provided based on
accounting income after adjusting for permanerfecdéhces. The provision for
income tax includes deferred income tax resultingmf items reported in
different and same periods for tax and financigloreng purposes. Over or
under provision of prior years’ income tax liabdg is included in current years’
income tax expenses. When a change in the taxisagrsacted, the deferred tax
liability or asset is recomputed accordingly in theriod of change. The
difference between the new amount and the origimaunt, that is, the effect of
changes in the deferred tax liability or assetreigorted as an adjustment to
current income tax expense (benefit).

B) The 10% additional income tax on undistributed E@% is recorded as income
tax expense in the period the stockholders appeovesolution to retain the
earnings.

C) The Company’s overseas subsidiaries’ income taxessabject to their local
regulations.

(17) Retirement plan

A) Under the defined benefit pension plan, net pecipéinsion costs are recognized
in accordance with the actuarial calculations. Tie¢ periodic pension costs
include service cost, interest cost, expected metur plan assets, unrecognized
net transition obligation and amortization of gaiois losses on plan assets.
Unrecognized net transition obligation is amortizeda straight-line basis over
15 years. Minimum pension liabilities in the interfinancial statements were
adjusted in accordance with the net periodic pensast and funds contributed.
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B) Under the defined contribution pension plan, netigoéc pension costs are
recognized as incurred.

(18) Treasury stock

A) Treasury stocks acquired are stated at cost ubmgveighted-average method
and reported as a deduction from stockholders’tgdguithe balance sheet.

B) Upon disposal, the related gain is credited to ftehpeserve-treasury stock
transaction” and any loss is offset against thpEtahreserve account. However,
when the balance of this capital reserve accoumsisfficient to offset the loss,
then the remaining amount is charged against edadarnings.

C) Upon registration of cancellation, except for thwolk value sum of “common
stock” and *“capital reserve-additional paid-in”, ialin is in proportion to
shareholding, the related gain is credited to ‘@hpreserve-treasury stock
transaction” and any loss is offset against thstahreserve account. However,
when the balance of this capital reserve accoumsisfficient to offset the loss,
then the remaining amount is charged against eda@arnings.

(19) Revenues, costs and expenses

A) Costs from development of software for sale aregeized as research expense
before establishing technical feasibility.

B) Revenue from prepaid cards for on-line game isrdedeand is recognized based
on points consumed.

C) Revenue from software and other merchandise isgrezed when the earning
process is substantially completed and the reventealized or realizable.

D) Sales returns are estimated based on a perceritagies

E) Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred.

F) Commissions received on prepaid cards from theiren-jfame providers is
deferred and recognized as revenue when servieggraered.

(20) Earnings per share

A) The computation of earnings per share is as\vt
Basic earnings per share: net income divided bywighted-average number of
shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share: the computation isdlme as basic earnings per
share, except that the potential dilutive shares assumed to have been
converted to common stock at the beginning of teegop and net income is
adjusted by the amount associated with the coraersi

B) The potential dilutive shares are employee stodlonpg and estimated shares of
employees’ bonuses when distributing stock. Thengany adopted the
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“treasury stock method” in computing the dilutiviéeet of the employee stock
options and the employees’ bonuses.

(21) Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statesa@mtconformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires manageni@nmake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts @atsassd liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datehef financial statements, and the
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negopieriod. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

(22) Operating segments
The Company discloses the segment information goralance with the internal
management report provided to the chief operatewsibn-maker. The Company’s
chief operating decision-maker is the chief exeeutofficer, who distributes
resources and assesses performance.
Effective January 1, 2011, in accordance with th@atenent of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 41, “Operating Segmernts$, Company discloses the
segment information in the consolidated finanoggdarts and not in the stand-alone
financial statements.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

(1) Notes and accounts receivable, other receivables

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company and its dticsubsidiaries adopted the
amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standd¥ds 34, “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. Under amended standard, if
there is any objective evidence that the notes aocbunts receivable, other
receivables and other rights of credit are impaisedimpairment loss (or provision
for doubtful accounts) is recognized immediatelirhe adoption of this regulation
had no significant effect on the consolidated famahstatements as of and for the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2011.

(2) Operating segments
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company and its dtimsubsidiaries adopted the
newly issued Statement of Financial Accounting &&ads No. 41, “Operating
Segments” to replace Statement of Financial AcdogntStandards No. 20,
“Segment Reporting”. The Company has restatedséggnent information as of
and for the nine-month period ended September GD) 2n accordance with the
standard. The adoption of this regulation had fiece on the consolidated net
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income and earnings per share for the nine-montbgended September 30, 2011
and 2010.

4. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

September g,

2011 2010
Cash on hand $ 1,096 $ 19,152
Demand deposit and checking def 977,500 719,697
Time deposits 526,108 421,910

$ 1,504,704 $ 1,160,759

(2) Notes receivable — net

September 30,
2011 2010
Notes receivab $ 113,181 $ 161,478
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts  ( 16) ( 16)
$ 113,165 $ 161,462

(3) Accounts receivable — net

September 30,

2011 2010
Accounts receivab $ 1,324,598 $ 1,385,778
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts  ( 101,336) ( 91,492)
Allowance for sales returns ( 4,134) ( 8,203)

$ 1,219,128 $ 1,286,083

(4) Inventories — net

September 30,
2011 2010
Inventorie: $ 122,508 $ 47,717
Less: Allowance for obsolescence and
market value decline ( 4,488) ( 7,393)

$ 118,020 $ 40,324

Related loss recognized for the period:

For thenine-month periods ended September 30,

2011 2010
Provision for decline in market
value of inventories $ 1,083 $ 8,171
Loss (gain) on physical count of
inventories $ 19  (§ 3)
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(5) Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle- non-current
September O,

ltems 2011 2010
Designated as at financiaksets at fa
value through profit or Ics:

Callable preferred stock $ 2,850 $ 2,850
Adjustment of designated as at
value through profit or loss

$ 2,850 $ 2,850

For business operation purposes, the Company’s stamrmibsidiary, Gamania Asia
Investment Co., Ltd., invested 285 thousand shara@spar value of $10 (NT dollars)
per share in the amount of $2,850. Such investigsembt entitled to a voting right,
profit distribution right and the right to claimrfeemaining property. According to the
investment contract, both parties agreed that dutime thirty days from the
repurchase base day, which is at the expiratigdhree years of settling date or other
documents’ appointment date, the investor can hskidsuer to redeem all of the
preferred stock based on fair value at the repseeihase day. If the fair value will be
lower than the published price, the issuer will dv&w repurchase based on the issue
price. In accordance with the contents of the pretestock contract and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, “Accountiftg Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”, the subsidiary i®aeted for as Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss — non-current.

(6) Financial assets carried at cost — non-current

September 0,

ltems 2011 2010
Unlisted stock:
Nice Finance Co., L. $ 91,453 $ 91,453
NC Taiwan Co., Ltd. 22,841 22,841
Compas Systems Col. 10,000 -
$ 124,294 $ 114,294

The above investments were measured at cost shwmie fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

20



(7) Long-term investments accounted for under the gouéthod

A) List of long-term investments

September 30, 2011 Investment loss
for the nine-month
Ownership period ended
Name of investee Original cost _ percentage Balance September 30, 2011
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. § 39,400 39.40 § 5,647 (§ 4,156)
September 30, 2010 Investment loss
for the nine-month
Ownership period ended
Name of investee Original cost percentage Balance September 30, 2010
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. $ 30,000 40.000 $ 4,251 ($ 5,390)
EYOU Digital (Shanghai )
Co., Ltd. 116 20.00% 116 -
$ 30,116 $ 4,367 (3 5,390)

B) Long-term investments accounted for under the gquethod, Taiwan e-sports
Co., Ltd. and EYOU Digital (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., r@ebased on the investees’
financial statements as of and for the nine-morghods ended September 30,
2011 and 2010 which were not reviewed by indepenaerountants.
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(8) Property, plant, and equipment

Cos

Lanc

Buildings

Machinery and equipme
Transportation equipme
Office equipmer
Leasehold improvemer
Other equipmel

Accumulaed depreciatic
Buildings

Machinery and equipme
Transportation equipmr
Office equipmer
Leasehold irprovement
Other equipmel

Construction in progress and prepayment

for equipment

Less: Accumulated impairme

Book value

(9) Other intangible assets

Franchises for sales of -line game
Franchise for game developme

(10) Deferred charges

Royalty paymen
Unamortized expen

(11) Short-term loans

Short-term bank loans
Annual interest rates
Credit lines

September g,
2011 2010
$ 157,375  $ 147,751
217,508 185,113
879,491 691,857
- 1,002
203,311 173,617
73,616 46,920
21,426 13,838
1,552,727 1,260,098
( 45,521) ( 38,145)
( 564,175) ( 443,150)
( -) ( 200)
( 116,821) ( 123,123)
( 25,034) ( 36,338)
( 7,269) ( 6,279)
( 758,820) ( 647,241)
S
14,405 44 402
( 4,150) ( 4,390)
$ 804,162 § 652,869
September ¢,
2011 2010
$ 4,188 % -
472 159
$ 4,660 $ 159
September 3
2011 2010
$ 194,892 $ 488,932
198,096 118,457
$ 392,988 $ 607,389
September 3,
2011 2010
$ 102,548  $ 183,195
1.30%~7.54% 1.48%~5.103%
$ 2,413,313 $ 2,082,339
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(12) Einancial liabilities at fair value through profit Ioss — non-current

September 0,
Items 2011 2010
Designated as at financial liabilities at fair v&
throwgh profit or los:

Callable preferred stock liabili $ 2,850 $ 2,850
Adjustment of designated as at fair val

through profit or los 576 ( 45)

$ 3,426 $ 2,805

For business operation purposes, the Company’s staamsubsidiary, Gameastor Digital
Entertainment Co., Ltd. (formerly Taiwan Index Clad.), issued 285 thousand shares of
preferred stock at a par value of $10 (NT dollaes) share in the amount of $2,850 which
was approved by the Board of Directors on MarchZI,0. At the expiration of three
years from issuance date, if the fair value ofgheferred stock is higher than the appointed
base price, Gameastor Digital Entertainment Cal, €an request for the redemption of the
stock based on the fair value, otherwise it wilvédo redeem the stock based on the
appointed base price. In accordance with the pesfestock contract and Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, “Accountirigr Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”, Gameastor DigitaeEainment Co., Ltd. accounted for
the preferred stock in “Financial liabilities atrfaalue through profit or loss”.

(13) Long-term loans

Total Period/Term Septembe 30,
Bank Credit Lines of Repayment 2011 2010
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 90,000 09.24.2008 ~09.23.2011, $ - $ 10,901
Banking Corporation (Note 1) equal quarterly installments
(Note2)
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 100,000 08.31.2009 ~ 08.31.2012,
Banking Corporation (Note 1) equal quarterly installments 13,236 24,877
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 100,000 09.01.2010 ~ 08.30.2013,
Barking Corporatio (Note1)  equal quarterly installmer 23,862 34,344
37,098 70,122
Less: Currer portior (_25,962) (__35,300)

$ 11,136 § 34.822

Note 1: In thousands of yen.
Note 2: The principal was repaid in April 2011.
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(14) Income tax

A) Income tax payable and income tax expense for the-month periods ended

September 30, 2011 and 2010 are reconciled asvllo
For the nine-month
periods ended Septembel,

2011 2010
Current year income tax expense $ 99,631 $ 138,183
Effect of changes in the deferred tax asset
resuting fromthe changein taxrale - 4,352
Additional 10% corporate income tax on
undistributed earnin 2,330 3,027
101,961 150,562
Add (Less): Net change in deferred incotag
asset ( 19,925) «( 70,142)
Prepaid incomtax ( 14,952) ( 99)
Under provision of prior year's
income ta ( 5,760) ( 23,120)
Income tax payable of prior ye - 7,505
Withholding tax by the foreign
governmen - ( 1,687)
Effect of exchange re 1,607 ( 523)
Income tax payable $ 02,931 $ 62,496
Income tax refundable recognized as “other
receivables” ($ 398)  ($ 51)
Income tax payab 63,329 62,547
$ 62,931 $ 62,496

B) Deferred income tax assets are as follows:
September 3

2011 2010

Deferred income tax ass — curren $ 33,084 $ 12,932
Deferred incomeax asse — nor-curren 228,568 237,320
Deferred income taliabilities — nor-curren  ( 2,001) -
259,651 250,252
Less: Valuation allowan:— curren ( 31,447) ( 837)
Valuation alowance¢— nor-curren ( 198,985)  ( 211,796)

$ 29,219 $ 37,619
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C) The temporary differences and related income teecesf are as follows:
September 30,

2011 2010
Amount Tax effect Amount Tax effect

Current items — assets:
Allowance for decline in market
value and inventory obsolescence § 5,895 § 1,002 $ 7,189 § 1,222

Allowance for sales returns 4,777 812 8,203 1,394
Loss carryforwards 72,703 12,360 - -
Others 33 6 - -
Investment tax credits 18,904 10,316
33,084 12,932
Less: Valuation allowance (___31,447) ( 837)
$ 1,637 $ 12,005

Non-current items — assets:
Investment loss on financial assets

carried at cost — non-current $ 9,851 $ 1,675 $ 9,851 $ 1,675
Loss carryforwards 789,771 134,261 686,873 116,768
Loss on foreign investments 218,685 37,176 180,043 30,607

Reserve for foreign investments  ( 17,915) ( 3,046) (  31,529) ( 5,360)
Depreciation allowance in excess of

related depreciation - - (15,359 «( 2,534)
Retirement fund expense but not
deposited with Bank of Taiwan 528 90 38 6
Investment tax credits 58,412 96,158
228,568 237,320
Less: Valuation allowance (__198,985) (__211,796)
$ 29,583 $ 25,524

Non-current items- liabilities:

Depreciation allowances in excess (§ 12,130) ($ _ 2,001) $ - 8 -
of related depreciation

D) As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the balancehafebolders account of
deductible tax was as follows:

September 30,
2011 2010

a. Balance of shareholders account of
deductible tax $ 18,903 $ 33,387
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2010 (Actual) 2009 (Actual)
b. Creditable tax ratio 9.96% 6.49%

E) Undistributed retained earnings:
Septembe 30,

2011 2010
On or after January 1, 19
a. Earnings not subjected to 1C
] income ta:b g $ 172,934 $ 169,221
. Earnings subjected to 10
income ta: 30,502 166,315

$ 203,436 § 335,536

F) The Company and its subsidiaries’ assessed and\agpmcome tax returns are as

follows:

(a) As of September 30, 2011, the Companincome tax returns through 2008
have been assessed and approved by the Tax Aythorit

(b) The Tax Authority imposed additional tax amongtto $23,481 on the
Company’s 2002 income tax return after the re-eration. The Company
filed a petition in January 2011, which is stilingeng as of the report date.

(c) The Tax Authority imposed additional tax amongt to $3,958 on the
Company’s 2003 income tax return after the re-exation. The Company filed
a petition in November 2010. In June 2011, the Aaxhority lowered the
additional tax after the re-examination.

G) As of September 30, 2011, in accordance with “Inednax Law” and the “Statute
for Upgrading Industries”, the Company and its dstice subsidiaries had

investment tax credits in the amount of $77,316ftset against taxable income for
the next three years. The details are as follows:

Year of
Deductible items Total credits Unused balance _expiration
Research and development
expenditures $ 76,913 $ 76,913 2011~2013
Machinery and equipment 403 403 2011~2013

$ 7156 3 77316
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H) As of September 30, 2011, in accordance with thedine Tax Law”, the
Companys domestic subsidiaries had loss carryforwardshim amount of
$146,621 to offset against taxable income for tbet iour to ten years. The
details are as follows:

Year of
Deductible item Amount reported Total gedits Unused balance _expiration
Loss carryforwards $ 001,561 $ 146,621 § 146,621 2014~2020

(15) Accrued pension liability

A) The Company has a non-contributory and funded déflienefit pension plan in
accordance with the Labor Standards Law, covetinggular employees before
the implementation of the Labor Pension Act on JuJy2005. Under the
defined benefit plan, two units are accrued foheggar of service for the first 15
years and one unit for each additional year thezeafp to a maximum of 45
units. Retirement benefits are based on the numbenits accrued and the
average monthly salaries and wages of the lasimsirths prior to retirement.
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries congibubnthly an amount equal
to 2% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wageshe retirement fund
deposited with Bank of Taiwan under the name ofitlteependent retirement
fund committee. The balance of the retirement fdeg@osited with Bank of
Taiwan was $49,255 and $45,602 as of September28@1 and 2010,
respectively. For the nine-month periods ended epejper 30, 2011 and 2010,
net pension costs recognized by the Company ambbitestic subsidiaries under
the defined benefit plan amounted to $2,039 an84R\l respectively. The fund
balances are not reflected in the consolidatednéizd statements. The
accumulated contributions exceeded the net pensimts in the amount of
$8,912 and $8,216 as of September 30, 2011 and, 2&4@ectively, which was
accounted for in other assetsther.

B) Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) Co., Ltd.m@aia Korea Co., Ltd.,
Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd., édog Studio Company Ltd.
and Gamania Digital Entertainment (Europe) B.V.vme pension reserves
annually for their employees in accordance with lteal regulations. The net
pension costs were $3,007 and $2,520 for the nimetm periods ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

C) Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltdopides an old-age pension
and insurance monthly based on 20%~22% of the greed salaries and wages
in accordance with the local regulations. The peision and insurance cost
was $6,308 and $4,146 for the nine-month periode@rseptember 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively.
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D) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its dongestibsidiaries, adopted a
defined contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”lnder the New Plan,
employees have the option to choose the New Plahe Company and its
domestic subsidiaries contribute monthly an amobased on 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the emeplyindividual pension
accounts deposited with the Bureau of Labor Inszegan Benefits accrued under
the New Plan are portable when the employees ldaveeompany. The net
pension costs recognized by the Company and itsediiensubsidiaries under
the defined contribution plan for the nine-monthiges ended September 30,
2011 and 2010 amounted to $29,346 and $25,104ctegly.

E) Gamania Holdings Ltd., Gamania Asia Investment Ctd,, Gamania Digital
Entertainment Labuan Holdings, Ltd., Gamania Irdéomal Holdings Ltd.,
Gamania China Holdings Ltd., Gamania Sino Holdibggs, Gamania Western
Holdings Ltd., Gamania Digital Entertainment (U.Sp., Ltd., Gamania
Netherlands Holdings Cooperatief U.A., Gash Plusn@d Kong) Company
Limited and Tornado Studio Co., Ltd. do not haveearployee retirement plan.

(16) Capital reserve
Share premiums from the issuance of new sharesdandtions may be used to
increase capital stock if the Company has surpiugetained earnings. The
amount that can be transferred to capital stock gaar is limited to 10% of this
balance. Other capital reserves can only be usedver the accumulated deficit
when the legal reserve is insufficient to coverabheumulated deficit.

(17) Legal reserve
Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Law, 10% of the alnafter-tax net income of the

Company, after covering accumulated losses, musippeopriated as legal reserve
until its total amount equals the issued capitatlst Legal reserve can only be
used to cover accumulated losses or to increastlkcapLegal reserve can be used
to increase capital only if the accumulated amadim¢gal reserve is more than 50%
of paid-in capital, and the amount is limited t&®0f its balance.

(18) Retained earnings
A) As stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Incoraion, the current earnings, if
any, shall be distributed in the following order:
a.Pay for taxes and duties.
b.Covering prior years’ accumulated deficit, if any.
c. After deducting items a and b, 10% of the remair@ngunt is appropriated as
legal reserve.
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B)

C)

d.In addition to the amount appropriated for legalerge, the Company may
appropriate an amount equal to the negative itentea stockholders’ equity
from retained earnings as special reserve.

e.Interest on capital.

f. After deducting items a to e, 10%b% of the remaining earnings is
appropriated as employees’ bonuses and up to 2&rameration to directors
and supervisors.

g. The remaining amount is to be distributed to stotdtdrs in accordance with
the resolution adopted at the stockholders’ meeting

The Taiwan imputation tax system requires that amgistributed current

earnings of a company derived on or after Januar$998 be subject to an

additional corporate income tax if the earnings ad distributed in the
following year's shareholders’ meeting.  This 10%ldiéional tax on
undistributed earnings paid by the company may beduas tax credit by
shareholders, including foreign shareholders, agatihe withholding tax on
dividends. In addition, the domestic shareholdan claim a proportionate
share in the company’s corporate income tax astadit against its individual

income tax liability effective 1998.

The appropriation of 2010 and 2009 earnings hadn bagproved at the

stockholders’ meeting on June 17, 2011 and JuB@M), respectively. Details

are summarized below:

2C1C earnings 2009 earnings
Dividend pe Dividend pe
Amount _ share (in dollarr _Amount  share (in dollar:

Legal reserv $ 23,260 $ 30,919
Cash dividenc 186,035 § 1.20 197,999 $ 1.30
Employee cash

bontses Note 1 Note 2
Directors’ and

supervisors’

remuneratio ” 7

Note 1: The amounts approved during the stockhsldeeeting for employeedionus ant
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are $3820d $5,040, respectively.

Note 2: The amounts approved during the stockhsldeeeting for employees’ bbos anc
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are $40 Add $5,565, respectively.

(a)The amount approved during the stockholders’timgdor the distribution
of 2010 earnings for cash dividends was the sarttethve amount approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors on April 22,120 As employee
stock options were converted to common stock, thenber of shares
outstanding changed during the year. Accordinghg appropriation of
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D)

E)

F)

dividend per share had been adjusted to $1.19896488¢g the board of
directors’ meeting on July 7, 2011.

(b)The amount approved during the stockholders’tmgédor the distribution
of 2009 earnings for cash dividends was the sarttetive amount approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 17120

The estimated amounts of employees’ bonuses ard¥2&nd $32,626, and
the estimated amounts of supervisors’ remuneratien$3,564 and $4,350 for
the nine-month periods ended September 30, 20112840, respectively.
The amounts above, constituting 10%~15% and 2%edwely, of net income
after taking into account the legal reserve, acegaized as operating cost and
expenses. If the actual distribution amounts afferdnt from the estimated
amounts, the difference will be adjusted in theome statement of the
following year.

The distribution of employees’ bonus and dire€toand supervisors’
remuneration in 2010, as mentioned in C) above, different from the
employees’ bonus of $41,401 and directors’ and rsigmes’ remuneration of
$5,520 recognized in the 2010 financial statementhe difference of $3,201
and $480, respectively, had been adjusted in theatmlated income statement
for the nine-month period ended September 30, 20The distribution of the
employees’ bonus and the directors’ and supervisensuneration in 2009, as
mentioned in C) above, was different from the empés’ bonus of $42,596
and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration 06%9,recognized in the 2009
financial statements. The difference of $856 ahti4$ respectively, had been
adjusted in the consolidated income statementhi®@mine-month period ended
September 30, 2010.

For current status of the resolution, pleasd e Taiwan Stock Exchange
website.
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(19) Earnings per share

For the nine-month period en8egtember 30, 2011

Amount Weighted average Earnings per shafe dollars)
number of outstanding
Before After common shares Before After
income tax _income tax (In thousands of shares) income tax income tax
Basic earningsper
share:
Net income $ 274,895 $ 172,934 154,770 $§ 1.78  § 1.12
Dilutive effect:
Stock options - - 2,222
Employees’ bonus - - 862
Diluted earnings
per share:
Net income $ 274,895  $172,934 157,854 § 1.74  § 1.10

For the nine-month period en8egtember 30, 2010

Amount Weighted average Earnings per shat@én dollars)
number of outstanding
Before After common shares Before After

income tax income tax (In thousands of shares) income tax income tax

Basic earningsper
share:

Net income $ 319,783 § 169,221 152,199 $ 2.10 §$ 1.11
Dilutive effect:
Stock options - - 4,095
Employees’ bonus - - 758
Diluted earnings
per share:
Net income $ 319,783 § 169,221 157,052 § 2.04 §$ 1.08

Effective January 1, 2008, as employees’ bonusdcbeldistributed in the form of
stock, the diluted EPS computation shall include é¢istimated shares that would
increase from employees’ stock bonus issuanceeicdimputation of the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding dtirengeporting period, taking
into account the dilutive effects of stock bonus potential common shares;
whereas, basic EPS shall be calculated based owdighted-average number of
common shares outstanding during the reportingodehat include the shares of
employees’ stock bonus for the appropriation obipsiear earnings, which have
already been resolved at the stockholders’ mediild in the reporting period.
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Since capitalization of employees’ bonus no lodgadongs to distribution of stock
dividends, the calculation of basic EPS and dilUERS for all periods presented
shall not be adjusted retroactively.

(20) Treasury stock

Changes in the treasury stock for the nine-montloge ended September 30, 2011
and 2010 are set forth below (in thousands of share
For the nine-month period ended Septembef311

A) Purpose Beginning  Additions Disposals Ending
Employee stock options 13,099 - (_13,099)
For the nine-month period ended Septembef310
Purpose Beginning  Additions Disposals Ending
Employee stock options 13.099 - - 13.099

B) The maximum and ending balances of treasurykdtmcthe nine-month periods
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010
Maximum balance Ending balance Maximum balance _ Ending balance
$ 370,182 § - $ 370,182 § 370,182

C) According to the R.O.C. Securities and ExchaAge the percentage of the
number of shares of treasury stocks shall not &k@€&6 of the total shares of
common stocks issued by the Company and the totaliat of treasury stock
shall not exceed the total amount of retained egmipaid-in capital in excess
of par value, and realized capital reserve.

D) According to the R.O.C Securities and Exchangg &easury stocks held by
the Company shall not be pledged, and shall beaight of shareholders until
reissued.

E) According to the R.O.C. Securities and ExchaAgg treasury shares for the
purpose of enhancing the Company’s creditworthimegsshareholders’ equity
not reissued within six months shall be retired &redsury stocks for all other
purposes shall be reissued within three years tremmonth of acquisition.

F) After the approval of the board of directors’ etieg on April 22, 2011, the
treasury stocks which were not reissued withindghyears from the month of
acquisition have been retired totaling 11,840 thadsshares. The retirement
resulted in the decrease in capital of $118,40the fate of capital reduction
was 7.04%, and the effective date was April 23,120After the approval of
the board of directors during its meeting on Jul\2@11, the treasury stocks
were transferred to employees at a price of $1pe3&Bhare. The total amount
paid by the employees was $19,351 and compensatisinwas $40,463. The
effective date was July 7, 2011.
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G) The fair value was estimated using “The Blackdkes model” as follows:
Exercise  Expected Expected Expected Risk-free

Transaction Grant Stock price T ) . . o . Fair value
. price (in price vesting period dividend interest .
type date (in dollars) dollars) volatility (year) (in dollars) rate (in dollars)
Treasary Jul
stock 7 28/11 $48.70 $15.37 31.29% 0.057 $1.20 0.87% $32.14
transactions '

(21) Employee stock option plan

A) On December 25, 2003 and November 14, 2007, bhbard of directors
approved the employee stock option plans which ideo¥or the issuance of
10,000,000 units and 12,000,000 units of optioespectively, that can be
converted to one share of common stock per unitheWthe contributed
capital changes as a result of the issuance ofsimanes of common stock, the
option price will be adjusted based on a predeteechi formula. The
Company has issued the employee stock options bru&e 10, 2004 and
December 17, 2007. The stock option has an exemesiod of six years.
Employees will be able to exercise these optiotey &fvo years in accordance
with the procedures of the employee stock opti@mpl

B) The units and weighted average exercise prideettock options for the nine-

month periods ended September 30, 2011 and 20Xkasdollows:
For the nine-month periods ended &aper 30,

2011 2010
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Units exercise price Units exercise price
Stock Options (in thousands) (in dollars) (Note) (in thousands) _(in dollars) (Note)
Beginning balance 7,249 $ 24.20 12,663 $ 25.33
Number of options granted - - - -
Adjustment due to
issuance of stock options - - - -
Exercised ( 2,271) - ( 3,963) -
Cancelled ( 68) - ( 837) -
Ending balance 4,910 23.60 7,863 24.20
Exercisable at the end of the
period 4,910 2,79

Authorized but unissued at
the end of the period - - - -

Note 1: The exercise price has been adjusted mrdance with the terms of the plan.

Note 2: As of September 30, 2011, 350 thousandestead not been registered and were accounted for
under stock subscriptions received in advance.

Note 3: As of September 30, 2011, 64 thousand shee not been registered and were accounted for

under stock subscriptions received in advance.
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C) As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the dethdsitstanding stock options are

as follows:
For the nine-month period ended September280.1

Outstanding stock options Exercisable stock options
Weighted-average Weighted-average Weighted-average
Exercise price Units remaining life exercise price Units exercise price
(in_dollars) (in thousands) (year) (in dollars)  (in thousands)  (in dollars)
$ 23.60 4,910 2.167  § 23.60 4,910 § 23.60
For the nine-month period ended September28d0
Outstanding stock options Exercisable stock options
Weighted-average Weighted-average Weighted-average
Exercise price Units remaining life exercise price Units exercise price
(in_dollars) (in thousands) (year) (in dollars)  (in thousands)  (in dollars)
$ 24.20 7,863 3.167 $ 24.20 2,779 $ 24.20

D) The pro-forma information as if the “fair-valmeethod” has been adopted is as
follows:
(a) Model: The Black-Scholes model

(b) Assumptions:
For the nine-month perior ended September30, 2C11

Black-Scholes model assumptic

Dividend yielc 0%
Volatility (Note 1, 43.58%
Risk-free interest ra 2.65%
Expected life of the optiol 4.3 year:
Exercise pric (Note 2 $ 23.60 (in dollars
Amortization perior 2~~3 year:

Note 1: The Company started trading in OTC on MayZD02, so it adopted the stock price from
May 21, 2002 to February 10, 2004 (the date optiesi® given). Also, the stock prices
mentioned above considered the effect of earnirgshilition every year.

Note 2: Exercise price of the stock options memibmbove considered the effect of earnings

distribution and was readjusted to $23.60.

(c) Result of evaluation:
For the nine-month period ended September 301 20
Black-Scholes model assumptions

Weighted average fair value options
granted to employees

Compensation cost under “fair value
method”

$  10.95 (in dollars)

$ 10,639
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(22) Personnel, depreciation and amortization ex@en
For the nin-month period ended Stember 31, 2C11

Operating cos Operating expens Total
Personnel expens
Salarie $ 83,348  § 861,007 $ 949,355
Labor and health insurars 8,799 64,916 73,715
Pension 3,043 37,657 40,700
Othess 1,864 55,805 57,669
$ 102,054  $ 1,019,385 $ 1,121,439
Depreciation $ 64,941 § 61,956 § 126,897
Amortization $ 151,037 $ 69,973 § 221,010
For the nin-month perid ended September 30,1C
Operating cos Operating expens Total
Personnel expens
Salarie $ 64,654 $ 715,706 $ 780,360
Labor and health insurars 6,089 52,659 58,748
Pensiol 2,359 30,954 33,313
Otheis 2,365 42,534 44,899
$ 75,467 § 841,853 § 917,320
Depreciation $ 46,857 $ 45,474 $ 92,331
Amortization $ 210,645 § 48,574 $ 259,219

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names and relationship of related parties

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Nexon CorporationNexor) Note
Taiwan e-sports Co., Itd. Investee company accounted for un
theequty
Gamania Cheer Up Foundat Same chairme

Note: Nexon held more than 20% of the Company'sngotshares which were
accounted for under the equity method since Mafthl2 As Nexon has the
ability to exercise significant influence on ther@many’s operational decisions
and thus considered as the Company’s related pimtyrelevant transaction
information between the Company and Nexon are ased from then on.
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(2) Significant transactions with related parties

A) License fees
For the nine-month periods ended September 30
2011 2010
% of % of
Amount license fees Amount license fees
Nexon $ 617,226 29 § - -
The above represents payments for license feegesd af the related party’s on-
line game. The license fees are negotiated basedferent factors.

B) Advertising expense

For the nine-month periods ended September 30

2011 2010
% of % of
advertising advertising
Amount expense Amount expense
Taiwan e-sports $ - - $ 4,000 -

Advertising expenses are paid to the related partyproviding advertisements.
The terms and prices of advertising were negotibsed on different factors.

C) Donation
For the nine-month periods ended September 30
2011 2010
% of % of
Amount donation Amount donation
Gamania Cheer
Up Foundation $ 9,500 81 $ 3 ,OOO 42

D) Membership fee and annual fee
For the nine-month periods ended September 30,

2011 2010
% of % of
membership membership
fee and annual fee and annual
Amount fee Amount fee
Taiwan e-sports $ - - $ 2,500 35

The above represents payment for membership andahbri@e in joining the
occupational e-sports game league.
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E) Deferred charges

September 30,

2011 2010
% of % of
Amount deferred charges Amount deferred charges
Nexon $ 65,551 17 $ -
EYOU Digital
(Shanghai) - - 27,133 4
$ 65,551 17 § 27,133 4

The above represents payment for on-line gamessetees.

F) Accounts payable

September 30,

2011 2010
% of % of
accounts accounts
Amount payable Amount payable
Nexon $ 69,571 12 % -
6. DETAILS OF PLEDGED OR RESTRICTED ASSETS
September 30,
Assets 2011 2010 Purpose
Land $ - $ 90,254 Long-term and short-term
loans / Credit lines
Buildings - 74,721 !
$ - $ 164,975

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In addition to Note 4(14), others are as follows:

A) As of September 30, 2011, the total future renéggihpents for the next 3 years under
non-cancelable operating lease agreements for éhsel of the Group’s office
building, transportation equipment and networkiegide was $113,118.

B) The Company contracted the use of cable lines,n0lT&, with rental charges based
on utilization. In addition, the Company contracteith several on-line game
vendors and will pay royalty based on actual usage.

8. MAJOR CATASTROPHE
None.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.
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10.0THERS
(1) The fair values of the financial instruments

September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010
Fair value Fair value
Quotations Quotations
Book in an active Estimated Book in an active Estimated
value market value value market value

Financial instruments
Non-derivative
financial instrumen:
Assets
Financial assets with  $2,870,002 (Note A) $2,870,002 $2,627,533 (Note A) $2,627,533
fair values equal to
book values
Financial assets at fair 2,850 - 2,850 2,850 - 2,850
value through profit or
loss
Financial assets carried 124,294 - - 114,294 - -
at cost
Refundable deposits 54,949 - 54,949 53,552 - 53,552
Liabilities
Financial liabilities $1,305,704 (Note A) $1,305,704 $1,181,766 (Note A) $1,181,766
with fair values
equal to book values

Financial liabilities at fair 3,426 - 3,426 2,805 - 2,805
value through profit or
loss
Long-term loan 11,136 - 10,908 34,822 - 26,194
Guarantee deposits 6 - 6 6 - 6

The methods and assumptions used to estimate thevdles of the financial

instruments are summarized below:

A) For short-term instruments, the book value is axpnate to the fair value because
of their short-term maturities. This applies tgltand cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, other receivables (excludiogme tax refundablenptes and
accounts payable, accrued expenses, other payahlesnt portion of long-term
liabilities and other current liabilities.

B) Designated as financial assets at fair value tHrquofit or loss are regarded as
guoted in an active market if quoted prices ardilga@nd regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pyicervice or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regulariyrong market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. If the market for a finandragtrument is not active, an entity
establishes fair value by using a valuation tealmiq Valuation techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transastibetween knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to the mmt fair value of another instrument
that is substantially the same, discounted cash Hoalysis and option pricing
models.
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C) The fair value of long-term loans is based on thes@nt value of expected cash
flow amount. The discount rate was another insemtmwhich the Company
could acquire similar terms at about 1.775% ~ 2225

D) The fair values of refundable deposits and guaeadaposits are the book value
since the amounts are insignificant.

E) Off-balance sheet financial instruments with credit:

September 3

2011 2010
Guarantee for loans of subsidia $ 538,060 $ 398,080

According to the Company’s credit policy, guarastean be provided for the loans
borrowed by the subsidiaries in which the Compaimgctly or indirectly holds
more than 50% voting rights and over which the Canypcan exercise controlling
power. No collaterals have been requested frometbabsidiaries as the Company
is able to monitor its credit standing. Shouldstheubsidiaries default, the losses
that would be incurred by the Company approximhageamount of the guarantee
provided by the Company.

F) As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the fairasabf the financial instruments with
interest rate risk are $526,108 and $421,910, ctispdy.

(2) Procedure of financial risk control and hedge

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afaincial risks, including market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interastte risk.
The Group’s overall risk management focuses onuthgredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimize potential adverseciffon the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s overall risk management focuses onutgredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverseciffon the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management program considersfteeteof economic environment,
competition and market value risk. The Group a#ido the best risk position, holds
appropriate liquidity position and centers on mamagnt of all the market risks.

To reach the objective of risk management, the @shedged activities are focused
on the market value risk and the cash flow risk.
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(3) Information of financial risk
A) Einancial instruments of equitffinancial assets carried at ceston-current

(A) Market risk
Investments in equity-type financial instruments affected by changes in

market prices. However, the Group can monitor madeciven changes and
establish stop-loss points when appropriate, swipated market risk is not
significant.

(B) Credit risk
The Group has evaluated credit standing of the teoparties and does not
expect any non-fulfilment of the terms of the gawt, so the chance of credit

risk is low.

(C) Liquidity risk
There is no active market for equity financial mstents of the Group, so the
Group expects to have liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearingetss cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in marketesteates.

B) ReceivablesNotes and accounts receivable and other recewable

(A) Market risk
The Group’s receivables are due within one yeartheoGroup expects no
significant market risk.

(B) Credit risk
The debtors of the Group have good credit standiaghe Group expects no
significant credit risk.

(C) Liquidity risk
The Group’s receivables are due within one yeartheoGroup expects no
significant liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group’s receivables are due within one yeartheoGroup expects no
significant cash flow interest risk.

C)Loans Short-term and long-term loans (including curngmition of long-term loans)

(A) Market risk
As interest rate of the loans for working capitafiked, the Group expects no

significant market risk.
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(B) Credit risk
None.

(C) Liquidity risk
The working capital of the Group is sufficient tover the loans, so it expects
no significant liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest risk
Fixed and floating interests for loans are adojgthe Group. There will be
no cash flow interest risk for loans with fixed @rgst, but for loans with
floating interest, effective interest will vary Wwifluctuations in market interest
and it will change future cash flows.

(4) Some transactions of the Company and its domestbsidiaries involve non-
functional currency, resulting in foreign currendgnominated assets and liabilities
which are affected by exchange rate fluctuationghe significant foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities of the Compantyits domestic subsidiaries as
of September 30, 2011 and 2010 are summarized below

September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010

Foreign Currency Exchange  Foreign Currency Exchange

Amount (Note) Rate Amount (Note) Rate

Financial Assets

USD : TWD Usb 1,501,751 30.5060 USD 1,672,648  31.2350
HKD : TWD HKD 128,870 3.9514 HKD 3,856,804 4.0254
RMB : TWD RMB 1,907,216 4.7710 RMB 1,380,508 4.6660
Financial Liabilities

USD : TWD USD 2,675,804 30.5060 USD 4,585,959  31.2350
HKD : TWD HKD 166,193 3.9154 HKD 255,597 4.0254

Note: Foreign currency amount is expressed in dolla

(5) For the nine-month periods ended Septembe2@0] and 2010, the Group donated
cash amounting to $11,800 and $7,170, respectitelgharities, and educational
institutions that are accredited by the governmarnthout significant appointed
considerations.
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11. DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

(1) Related information of significant transactions
A) Financing activities to any company or person: None
B) Guarantee for any other company or person:

Unit: Thousands of New Tamiollars / Thousands of shares

Company ¢ : ; o
investee companies Parties being guaranteed Limit of Maximum , Ratio of :
outstanihg guarante Outstanding Amount of accumulated Maximum
Relationshiy | 9uarantee for amount fgrgthe nine| guarantee amouniguarantee with . =5 2 - Lamount available
with the - at September 30, collateral 9 for guarantee
Numberl  \ome Name Compan each party | month period ended 5011 laced |10 net value of the (Note 3)
(Note 1) pany (Note 4) | September 30, 2011 P Company
(Note 2)
0 |The Compan|Gash Plus 2 $  469,203|$ 180,000($ 180,000 None 6.41% $1,564,011
Company Ltd. (30% of the
Company’s
capital)
0 The Compan|Gameastor Digital 2 $  469,203|% 330,000($ 240,000 None 8.55% $1,564,011
Entertainment Co., 0
Ltd. (30% of the
Company’s
capital)
0 The Compan|Gamania Digital 3 $  469,2031($ 66,000($ 66,000 None 2.35% $1,564,011
Entertainment (Japar
Cooranment (Japar) (30% of the
Company’s
capital)
0 The CompanyGamania Digital 3 $ 469,203 |$ 59,010($ 52,060 None 1.85% $1,564,011
Entertainment 30% of th
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (30% of the
Company’s
capital)

Note 1: Number O represents the Company.
Note 2: Number 2 means the Company directly owres 60% of the shares of the subsidiary.
Number 3 means the Company and the subsidiary ean50% of the shares of the investee company.
Note 3: In accordance with the Company’s police, tibtal guarantee amount of the Company shall xxzeexl 30% of the Company’s capital.

Note 4: The Company provides guarantee for theigiabbies in which the Company directly or indirgcHolds more than 50% voting rights. The limitgefarantee for each
party is 30% of the Company’s capital, and the mmaxn amount available for guarantee is the Compasapstal.
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C) Marketable securities held at September 30, 2011:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStmares

" Relationship of the September & 2011
Type of marketable securities Name of marketable . )
Company (Note 1) securities issuers with the | General ledger account Number of Book value Percentage Market value Note
security holders shares 9 (Note 2)
The Company Common Stock Gamania Holdings Ltd. Subsidiary Losagn investment 28,406 | $ 750,620 100% | $ 750,620 Note 3
7 4 Gamania Korea Co., Ltd. 7 ” 224 9,125 100% 9,125 7
” ” Fantasy Fish Digital Gamegs ” ” ”
Co., Ltd. 10,174 13,275 99.75% 11,384
, ” Gameastor Digital ” ” ”
Entertainment Co., Ltd. 3,863 82,310 72.08% 83,004
, , Gamania Asia Investmen ” ” ”
Co., Ltd 13,945 148,756 100% 148,756
Gamania Digital
7 4 Entertainment Labuan 7 i 10| ¢ 227) 100% | ( 227) 7
Holdings, Ltd
, ” Fundation Digital ” ” ”
EntertanmentCa., Ltd. 3,308 4,493 100% 4,493
’ i Playcoo Co. 7 ’ 13,996 108,517 75.25% 62,389 7
7 4 Redgate Games Co., Ltd 7 i 14,200 13,533 100% 13,533 7
” ’ Seedo Games Co., Ltd. 7 4 12,200 7,156 100% 7,156 7
’ ’ Two Tigers Co., Ltd. 7 ’ 627 5,980 51% 5,980 7
i i Gash Plu Compan: Ltd. i i 5,000 69,340 100% 69,340 ”
Investee compan
¢ 4 Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd.|accounted for und ’ 3,940 5,647 39.40% 5,647 N/A
the equity method
Investee compan
” ” . accounted for und( Financial assets carried |at ”
NC Taiwan Co., Ltd. financial assets cost-non current 2,100 22,841 15% 22,841
carried at cos

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksdso beneficiary certificates and other derivainstruments.

Note 2: The market value of listed equity secwsitd closed-end mutual funds is determined basedbsing price and net asset value of funds, sy at the balance sheet
date. The market value of open-end mutual fundeisrmined based on the net asset par value hataece sheet date.

Note 3: The transaction has been eliminated ictimsolidated financial statements.
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D) Marketable securities acquired or sold during time-month period ended September 30, 2011 in exafekE00,000 or 20% of capital :
Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousanidStare:

Type ani Beginning balanc - : Ending talance
Investor name of General regﬁgﬁsﬁ%dof (Note 1) Addition Disposal Disposal (Note 1)
marketable |ledger account Number Number o Number of gain Number
securitie counterparty | J'p o | Amount share Amount share Amount Cost of share | Amount
Financial ~Initial
The Company Bond Fund ft"rzsd‘f;g%grfg Ir'{(‘:‘éﬁfg;ﬁ,%ﬁg I3 ; 10,182 $ 129,000 10,182 $ 129,071|$ 129,000] $ 71 s -
funds
’ Jih Sun Bond ’ ” - - 9,511 135,000 9,511 135,056 135,000 56 - -
i MegaBonc 7 7 - - 9,411 113,000 9,411 113,173] 113,000 173 - -
’ Pcafunds Bond ’ ” - - 7,659 100,000 7,659 100,086 100,000 86 - -
Gamanie
Long-term | Holdings Ltd./
Gamania investments Investee
7 Holdings Ltd accounted fof  company 22,650 657,580 5,756 93,040 - - - -| 28,406 750,620
"I under the | accounted for (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
equity metho?under the equit
metho

Note 1: Amount of initial investment at inception.

Note 2: The Company invested $167,556 and recodnizestment loss, cumulative translation adjustsiand effect of change in ownership percentagevelstee company.
The net increase amount was $93,040.

Note 3: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements

E) Acquisition of real estate in excess of $100,0020% of capital: None.

F) Disposal of real estate in excess of $100,00Dé&6 of capital: None.
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G) Sales to or purchases from related partiezéess of $100,000 or 20% of capital:

Transaction terms

Description of and reasong
for difference in transactior
terms compared to non-

Accounts or notes receivable (payabl

D

~

Purchaser Name of transaction related party transactions
/Seller parties Relationship Percentage of Percentage of total
Purchases] Amount total purchaseg Credit Unit price Credit Balance accounts or notes
( Sales) (sales) terms period receivable (payable)
Gamania Digitall Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Sales| $1,533,955 47% Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 $ 713,475 81%
Entertainment (Note 2)
Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The above represents sales condition baseterchandise, competitive market and tradingsdn.

Note 2: The investment has been eliminated in témsalidated financial statements.

The price and collection terms are sintitethird parties.

H) Receivable from related parties in excess @0$100 or 20% of capital: None.
Balance of receivable Overdue receivables
Name of Transaction parties| Relationship| from related parties (in| Turnover rate Amount Action adopted for Allowance for doubtful
creditor thousands) overdue accounts| Subsequent collections accounts provided
Gamania Digital| Gash Plus Co., Ltd| Subsidiary $ 713,475 5.73 $ - $ - $ -
Entertainment (Note 1)

Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The investment has been eliminated in tdmsalidated financial statements.

1)

Information on derivative transaction: None.
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@)

Information of investee companies

A)

Information of investee companies:

(The information about investee companies weredaseunreviewed financial statements.)

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSiwares

Original investment cost

Held by the Company

Income (loss)

Investment

. \ . Main operating . income (loss)
Company Name of investee Location activities 2011.9.30 | 2010.12.31 Number of Percentage| Book value |nCLiJnr\r/ee(ltté)éthe recognized by Note
shares the Company
P.O. Box 30592 SMB,
Gamania Cayside, 2nd Floor,
: Harbour Drive, Grand| Investment Subsidiary
The Company| Holdings Ltd. Cayman, Cayman holdings $1,697,587 | $1,530,031 28,406 100% $ 750,620 | (§ 119,842) | ($ 119,842) (Note 3)
Islands, British West
Indies
) Seoul, Kang-Nan GU, Design and
” Gg(;“a[‘t'g Korea | sam sung Dong 75-6|  sales of 267,952 | 249,615 224 | 100% 9,125 | (  20,482) | ( 20,482) ”
v Soodang B/D 302 software
. 18F, No. 736 Chang- Design and
Fantasy Fish
” - Cheng Rd., Chung-Ho research and ”
glgltilt((fames City, Taipei County, | development o 330,000 310,000 10,174 99.75% 13,275 | ( 33,283) | ( 33,190)
0., L. Taiwan software (Note 1)
Gameastobigital Software
7 Entertainment 7 services and 211,433 211,433 3,863 72.08% 82,310 47,421 33,910 7
Co., Ltd. sales (Note 2)
Gamania Asia Investment
7 Investment Co., 7 ; 190,000 190,000 13,945 100% 148,756 12,960 12,960 7
Ltd holdings
~_ |Level 15(A), Main
Gamania Digital | Office Tower, Financig
” Entertainment | Park Labuan, 87000 Investment ”
Labuan Labuan Jalan Merdekis  holdings 329 329 10 100% ( 227) ( 67) ( 67)
Holdings, Ltd. | 87000 Labuan, FT,
Malaysia

Note 1: The weighted-average ownership percentg8.2%.
Note 2: Including the amount of write-off of read and unrealized upstream revenue ($271).
Note 3: The investment has been eliminated in timsalidated financial statements.
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Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSimares

_ _ Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss) Investment
Company Name of investé¢e Location Main gpgratlng Number of incurred by the incomg (loss) Note
activities 2011.9.30 | 2010.12.31 Percentage| Book value investee recognized by|
shares the Company
. ... [18F, No. 736 Chang- Sales and
Fundation Digital ' e -
: Cheng Rd., Chung-Ho | publishing of Subsidiary
The Company/| Enterl_tzjlnment City, Taipei County, magazines and $ 150,000 | § 120,000 3,308 100% $ 4,493 [ ($ 28,589) [($ 28,589) (Note 3)
0., Ltd. Taiwan periodicals
Design and
7 ” research and ”
Playcoo Co. development of 152,554 152,554 13,996 75.25% 108,517 9,021 2,593
software (Note 1)
Design and
” Redgate Games ” research and ”
Co.. Ltd. development of 142,000 82,000 14,200 100% 13,533 | ( 45,427) | ( 45,427)
software
Design and
” Seedo Games Gp ” research and ”
Ltd. development of 122,000 82,000 12,200 100% 7,156 | ( 34,666) | ( 34,6606)
software
” Two Tigers Co. ” Animation ”
Ltd. production 6,269 6,269 627 51% 5,980 | ( 519) | ( 2695)
Supply of
P Gash Plus Co., ” software services ”
Ltd. and electronic 50,000 - 5,000 100% 69,340 19,340 19,340
information
. Supply of Investee company
. 9F, No.176 Chung Hsiag L
, Taiwan e-sports | " Ry Section 4, | SOfware services 54 4, 32,000 3,940 | 39.4% 5,647 | ( 10,984) | (4,156 | 2ccounted for
Co., Ltd. Taivei City. Taiwan and electronic under the equity
P Y information (Note 2) method
. . ... |18F, No. 736 Chang-
Gamania Asia |GameastoDigital ’ .
: Cheng Rd., Chung-Ho | Design and sales ”
Investment Entertainment City, Taipei County, of software 80,625 80,625 1,485 27.20% 31,322 47,421 12,899
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Taiwan

Note 1: Including amortization of subsidiary’s p#tamounting to ($4,195).
Note 2: The weighted-average ownership percentagé.B4%.

Note 3: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.
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Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStwares

Original investment cost

Held by the Company

Income (loss)

Investment

. . Main operating . income (loss)
Company Name of investee Location I Number of incurred by the : Note
activities 2011.9.30 | 2010.12.31 Percentage| Book value i recognized by|
shares g investee the Company
P.O. Box 30592 SMB,
) Gameastor Cayside, 2nd Floor,
Gﬂé‘%?r%s Lig.| International gg;?ﬁ;rﬁ Dcrg’;ﬁ]g{,a”d ";“ge,g}%es”t USD 51,795 | USD 46,040 51,795 | 100% | USD 24,762 |(USD 4,100 | (USD 4,100 |  Subsidiary
'| Holdings Ltd. Islands, British West thousand Thousand thousand thousand) thousand) (Note 2)
Indies
G ia Digital Sumitomo Ooimachi Bldg.
Gamania amania Digrial | (South) 3F, 1-20-10 Design and saleg
International | Entertainment | Town, Ooi, Shinagawa- of software; salegUSD 16,383 | USD 14ﬁ298 5 100% USD 8,818 | USD ,477 UsD ,477 ”
Holdings Ltd. | (Japan) Co., Ltd. KU, Tokyo, Japan 140-|  of hardware thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
0014
P.O. Box 30592 SMB,
Gamania ) _ Cayside, 2nd Floor,
International Gamania China | Harbour Drive, Grand Investment USD 33,384 | USD 29,384 33384 98.56% USD 11,217 | (USD 928 | (USD 914 ”
Holdings Ltd Holdings Ltd. | Cayman, Cayman holdings thousand thousand ’ ’ Thousand thousand) thousand)
: Islands, British West (Note 1)
Indies
) P.O. Box 2804, Scotia,
Gamania.  |Gamania Western%vrygeb";ghna%%%g Investment  [USD 6,150 | USD 4,850 6150 | 100 | USD 2,580 [(USD 1,384 |(USD 1,384 ,
Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd. | 71112, Cayman holdings thousand | thousand ’ thousand thousand) thousand)
Islands
Gamania
Gamania Netherlands .
: ; Prof J H Barincklaan Investment |EUR 1,500 | EUR 500 EUR 512 | EUR 901 | EUR 901 ”
Int t | | Hold h ’
Qofé?n%gjﬂ%_ Cgog)gggtief 5,1183AT Amstelveen. holdings thousand |  thousand £,500 100% thousand thousand thousand
U.A.
Unit 509 5/F., Conic ;
) L Design and
G?nTgrr]llgtional Firedog Studio ',{l‘(‘)"?lsgﬂ%rl‘(t?u“gg'g? research and |HKD 18,255 | HKD 10,455 18 955 L00% HKD 7,115 | (HKD 7,119 |(HKD 7,119 ,
Holdings Ltd. Company Ltd. Hunghom, Kowloon, development of|  thousand thousand ’ thousand thousand ) thousand )
Hong Kong software
Unit 509 5/F., Conic
Gamania Gash Plus Investment Building, Supply of
International | (Hong Kong) No.13 Hok Yuen St, S%Egaéﬁassg\g&e 5[-IK]:t)housZISlﬁd) ) 750 100% Us?housalr?d2 USDthousand5 USDthousang !
Holdings Ltd.| Company Ltd. Egﬂgh}ggs{gmwloon, information

ote 1: The weighted-average ownership percentg8.47%.

Note 2: The investment has been eliminated in tdmsalidated financial statements.
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Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStware

: . Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss) | , /nvestment
Company | Name of investee Location Main operating Number of incurred by the ;gggmnﬁz(é%sg) Note
activities 2011.9.30 | 2010.12.31 Percentage| Book value investee 9 Y
shares the Company
Gamania . Supply of
: Tornado Studio |[Sgoul, KangNan GU,San s, are servicesUSD 300 USD 183 | (USD 97 |(USD 97 Subsidiary
International Co., Ltd ung Dong 75°0 and electronic thousand i 300 100% thousand thousand) thousand) (Note)
Holdings Ltd. T Soodang B/D 302 information
o Fourth Floor, One Capit:
Gamania Chinaeﬁgl];ggssﬂ?do ey aymdn  Investment | USD 30,920 | USD 26,920 | 0 o0 loog | USD 1,552 | (USD 5,220 | (USD 5,220 ,
Holdings Ltd. ' Islands, British West holdings thousand |  thousand ’ ’ thousand thousand) thousand)
Indies
Gamania Digital Flat 504507, 5F,|dConi( 3
: o Investment Building, 1 ;
Gamania Ching Entertainment | Hok Yuen Street, Hung Softwa(;e sierwcesUSD 3,009 |USD 3,009 35.500 100% USD 8,544 USD 4,864 USD 4,864 »
Holdings Ltd. H.K) Co. Lid. | Hom, Kowloon, Hong and sales thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. Kong
- |Gamania Digital \pm 811, 8F, Building A,
Gamania Sino | Entertainment | GEM Techcenter, No. 9, Design and salegUSD 27,000 | USD 23,000 N/A 1004 USD 1,521 (USD 5,046 (USD 5,046 ”
Holdings Ltd.| (Beijing) Co., | 3rd street of Shangdi, of software thousand | thousand ’ thousand thousand) thousand)
Ltd. Beijing 100085 China
i Gamania Digital |Suite 806, 1220 N. Markgt
G{;‘vma{“a  tertal g . | Street, Wilmington, DE | Software services/SD 6,130 |USD 4,830 . loog | USD 2,581 | (USD 1,383 | (USD 1,383 ,
esierm ntertainmen 19801, County of Hew and sales thousand thousand Y thousand thousand) thousand)
Holdings Ltd.| (U.S.) Co., Ltd. | Castle
Gamania G 2 Digital
amania Digital
Hgfg;r;”ds et 9 2 INaritaweg 165 Telestong Software serviceER 1,500 | ER 500 Lsool o [EROSI2 [ (BR 901 |(ER 901 ,
Cooperatief | (Europe) B.V 8, 1043BW Amsterdam and sales thousand thousand ’ thousand thousand) thousand)
UA. o

Note: The investment has been eliminated in the@afated financial statements.

B)
C)

Financing activities to any company or person: None
Guarantee information: None.
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D)

Marketable securities held at September 30, 2011:

Name of September g, 2(11
Type of marketable securities marketable Relationship with| General ledger | Number of share Market valut
Issue (Note 1 securitie the security holde accoun (Note 3 Book valut Percentac (Note 2 Note
. Long-term
. Gamania .
Gamania - . investments — USD 24,762 USD 24,762
Holdings Ltd. Common Stock Lrg%rirr:agolﬁtzl Subsidiary accounted for under ’1,793 thousand 100% thousand Note 4
9 ’ the equity method
Gamania Gamania Digital
International ” Entertainment ” ” 5 USD N 8,81(81 100% USD 8,818 ”
Holdings Ltd. (Japan) Co., Ltd| thousan thousand
Gamania . .
Holdings Ltd. gs Lid. ousan thousand
Gamania .
International » Gggllgmaswljsterr » ” 6.150 USDth 2, 583 100% Usb 2,580 ”
Holdings Ltd. 9 : ousan thousand
Gamania Gamania
International , Netherlands , , | s00 | ER 512 Lo | ER 512
Holdings Ltd. Holdings ’ thousand Y thousand
Cooperatief U.A
Gamania Firedog Studio
el , Company Ltd. ” » 18,255 HKDth 7,1 1(51 100% HKDth 7,1 1(51 »
Holdings Ltd. ousan ousan
Gamania Gash Plus (Hong
International ” Kong) Company ” % 750 | USD 102 1005 | USD 102 ;
Holdings Ltd. Ltd. thousand thousand
Gamania :
International ” Tc():r(;\ a(il_ct)dStudlo 7 ” 300 | USP h 18(31 100% | USB 183 ,
Holdings Ltd N ousan thousand
. . Gamania Digital
Gggﬁr:]lgsclt_%na ” Entertainment ” ” 35.500 USDth 8,543 100% USD 8,544 ”
' (H.K.) Co., Ltd. ousan thousand
Gamania China ” Gamania Sino ” ” 30.920 USD 1,552 1004 USD 1,552 ”
Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd. ’ thousand ’ thousand

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksidso beneficiary certificates and other derivathstruments.

Note 2: The market value of listed equity secusiiad closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbsing price and net asset value of funds, ey, at the balance sheet date.

The market value of open-end mutual funds is detexthbased on the net asset par value at the leadtieet date.
Note 3: Unit: In thousand shares.
Note 4: The investment has been eliminated in timsa@lidated financial statements.
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Name of September 3, 2011
Type of marketable securities marketable | Relationship with| General ledger | Number of shareg Market value
Issue (Note 1 securities | the security holders ~ account (Note 3 Book valuc | Percentac (Note 2) Note
Gamania Digital Long-term
Gamania Sino Entertainment - investments — USh 1,521 USD 1,521
Holdings Ltd. Common Stock (Beijing) Co., Subsidiary |5 ccounted for under N/A thousand 100% thousand Note 4
Ltd. the equity method
Gamania Wester , Gamaria Digital , , USD 2,581 USD 2,581 |
Holdings Ltd. ntertainment 1 h d 100%
(U.S.) Co., Ltd. ousan thousand
GNamﬁmiiel J Gamania Digital HIR s HIR s
etherlands ” ; ” ” P
Holdings Entertainment 1,500 thousand 100% thousand
Cooperatief U.A| (Europe) B.V.
Gamania Asi Gameastor Digita] Investee company
Investment Co., 7 Entertainment |accounted for undg ¢ 1,458 31,322 27 .20% 31,322 ¢
Ltd. Co., Ltd. the equity method thousand thousand
Gamania Asi . . . .
” Nice Finance Financial assets 91,453 91,453
Lrl\éf.estment Co., Co., Ltd. None carried at cost 9,383 thousand 14.60% thousand None
Gamania Asi
” Compass ” ” 10,000 10,000 ”
:_nt\é(?}stment Co., Systems Corp. 1,000 thousand 3.40% thousand
Gamania Asi Iwan Interactive Financail assets gt 2.850 2.850
Investment Co., 7 Entertainment 7 fair value through 285 ’ 14.96% ’ 7
Ltd. Co., Ltd. profit or loss thousand thousand

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksdso beneficiary certificates and other derivathstruments.
Note 2: The market value of listed equity secusiiad closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbsing price and net asset value of funds, sy, at the balance sheet date.

The market value of open-end mutual funds is detexthbased on the net asset par value at the leadtieet date.
Note 3: Unit: In thousand shares
Note 4: The investment has been eliminated in ¢msalidated financial statements.

E) Marketable securities acquired or sold during time+month period ended September 30, 2011 in exafekB00,000 or 20% of capital: None.
F) Acquisition of real estate in excess of $100,00Q0% of capital: None.
G) Disposal of real estate in excess of $100,000 &6 aDcapital: None.

H) Sales to or purchases from related parties in exae$100,000 or 20% of capital: None.
I) Receivable from related parties in excess of $1Dd 20% or capital: None.
J) Information on derivative transactions: None.
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(3) DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT IN MAINLANDCHINA

A)
Remitted or received Direct and | Investment loss| Balance of Accumulatec
Accumulated Accumulated . . ) . investment
: . : investment amount | . indirect recognized | investment| .
Name of investee Main : Investment investment & ; ; investment as ; income
. ) g - Capital during the period | percentage during the at :
in Mainland China activities method | of January 1 of Septembe . received as
2011 . . 30, 2011 of period September| < tembe
Remitted | Received ' ownership (Note 3) 30, 2011
30, 2011
Gamania Digital . (RVB (USD 20,870 (USD 20,870 (USD 4,969 |USD 1,499
. Design an{o>np 820
Entg_r tainment sales of ’ (Note 2) thousand) $ - $ - thousand) 98.56% thousand) thousand | $ -
Ltd. $959,337 $636,660 $636,660 ($151,584) $45,728

Accumulated amount of investment in Mainli
China as of September 30, 2011

Related investment amount approved by FIA

Uppeit lifinvestment in Mainland China

$ 636,660 (USD 20,870 thousand)

$ 798,647 (Note 1)

$ 1,684,609

Note 1: Related total investment amount approveBIByis USD 26,180,000 or NTD 798,647 thousand dase 30.50600 exchange rate.

Note 2: Investment through a holding company reggst in a country other than Taiwan or Mainlandn@hi

Note 3: Investment loss recognized in the periathlsulated based on 98.47% of indirect ownershipgithe financial statements of the investejch were unreviewed.

B) The Company has no significant transactions wighhiblding company or its subsidiaries in Mainlaridria.

C) The investment has been eliminated in the condelitiinancial statements.
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(4) The relationship and significant transactibetveen the Company and its subsidiaries

For thenine-month period endeSeptembe 30, 2(11

Transaction terms

Percentage of total

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
0 Gamania Digital Entertainment ~ Gameastor Digital 1 Service income $ 5,220 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ’ Gameastor Digital 1 Advertising expense 37,988 Note 4 1%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Other receivables 8,882 Note 4 -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Other payables 110,088 Note 4 2%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Accrued expenses 5,186 Note 4 -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 7 Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Sales revent 1,533,955 Note ¢ 29%
0 7 Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Account: receivabli 713,475 Note ¢ 15%
0 7 Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Other receivable 160,222 Note ¢ 3%
0 ’ Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Other payable 145,829 Note ¢ 3%
0 ’ Playcoo Co. 1 License costs 13,914 Note ¢ -%
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 8,030 Note 4 -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 36,651 Note 4 1%
(Europe) B.V.
0 7 Gamania Holdings Ltd. 1 Other receivables 5,114 Note 4 -%
0 ’ Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Company Ltd. 1 Other payables 57,460 Note 4 1%
1 Gameastor Digital Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 3 Sales revenue 176,340 Note 4 3%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
1 i Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 3 Account: receivabli 67,450 Note ¢ 1%
1 ’ Playcoo Co. 3 License costs 7,225 Note ¢ -%
1 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 License costs 10,020 Note 4 -%
Holding, Ltd.
1 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 Royalties payments 15,649 Note 4 -%
Holding, Ltd.
2 Playcoo Co. Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 Accounts receivable 11,871 Note 4 -%
Holding, Ltd.
2 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 License revenue 60,299 Note 4 1%
Holding, Ltd.
3 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 16,466 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd.
3 ’ Seedo Games Co., Ltd. 3 Prepayments 8,308 Note ¢ -%
3 i Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Company Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 9,068 Note ¢ -%
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For thenine-month period endeSeptembe 30, 2(11 (Continued

Transaction terms

Percentage of total

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note ) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note)
3 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Company Ltd. 3 Prepayments $ 66,095 Note 4 1%
Co., Ltd.
4 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) 3 Accounts receivable 6,005 Note 4 -%
Holding, Ltd. Co. Ltd.
4 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) 3 License revenue 60,225 Note 4 1%
Co. Ltd.

Note 1: The transaction information of the Compang its consolidated subsidiaries should be netedliumn “Number”. The number means:
1. Number O represents the Company.

2. The consolidated subsidiaries are ireoficom number 1.
Note 2: The relationships with the transactioniparare as follows:
1. The Company to the consolidated subsidia
2. The consolidated subsidiary to the Campa
3. The consolidated subsidiary to anotle&isolidated subsidiary.

Note 3: Ratios of asset/liability accounts aredtdd by consolidated total assets, and ratios ditfioss accounts are divided by consolidated sadesnue.

Note 4: There is no similar transaction to compaith. It will follow the agreed price and transactiterms.
Note 5: The disclosure standard reaches above $%90the transaction amount.
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For thenine-month period endeSeptembe 30, 2(1C

Transaction terms

Percintage of tote

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1 Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note
0 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gameastor Digital 1 Purchase $ 7,078 Note ¢ -%
Co., Ltd. Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Rent revenu 7,116 Note ¢ -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Advertising expens 34,487 Note ¢ 1%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Other receivable 5,030 Note ¢ -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Other payable 85,902 Note ¢ 2%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gameastor Digital 1 Accrued expens 7,066 Note ¢ -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.
0 7 Fundation Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. 1 Purchase 10,515 Note ¢ -%
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivable 5,586 Note ¢ -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivable 22,765 Note ¢ 1%
(Europe) B.V.
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other eceivable 10,308 Note ¢ -%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.
0 7 Gamania Holdings Ltd. 1 Other receivable 5,003 Note ¢ -%
1 Gameastor Digital Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 License cos 26,498 Note ¢ 1%
Entertainment Co., Ltd. Holding, Ltd.
1 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 Royalties paymen 26,440 Note ¢ 1%
Holding, Ltd.
2 Playcoo Co. Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 License revent 56,092 Note ¢ 1%
Holding, Ltd.
2 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 Account: receivabli 12,296 Note ¢ -
Holding, Ltd.
3 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) 3 License revent 62,977 Note ¢ 1%
Labuan Holding, Ltd. Co. Ltd.
3 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) 3 Account: receinable 7,020 Note ¢ -%
Co. Ltd.

Note 1: The transaction information of the Compangl its consolidated subsidiaries should be netediumn “Number”. The number means:
1. Number O represents the Company.
2. The consolidated subsidiaries are irofcm number 1.
Note 2: The relationships with the transactioniparare as follows:
1. The Company to the consolidated subsidia
2. The consolidated subsidiary to the Campa
3. The consolidated subsidiary to anotleeisolidated subsidiary.
Note 3: Ratios of asset/liability accounts aredtdd by consolidated total assets, and ratios ditfioss accounts are divided by consolidated sadesnue.
Note 4: There is no similar transaction to compaith. It will follow the agreed price and transaatiterms.
Note 5: The disclosure standard reaches above 850@he transaction amount.
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12.OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(1) General information

Management has determined the operating segmes&d ln the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker which are used to malegegfic decisions.

(2) Assessment of segment information

The chief operating decision-maker assesses tlierpamce of the operating segments based on ne
income or net loss of the reporting period.

(3) Information on segment profit (loss), assets leabilities

The segment information on reportable segmentsigedwvto the chief operating decision-maker for
the nine-month periods ended September 30, 201 2@l are as follows:

Gamanii Gameastc

For the nine-month Digital Digital

period ended Entertainment Entertainment Gash Plus
Septembe 30, 2011 Co., Ltd. Co,, Ltd. Co, Ltd. Other: Total
Revenie from externa

customers $ 1,560,404 $ 602,975 $ 2,052,026 $ 1,144,298 $ 5,359,703
Inter-segment revenue 1,716,724 35,391 - 159,171 1,911,286
Segment prof (loss] 172,934 47,421 19,340 ( 64,951) 174,744
Depreciation an

amartizatior ( 204,967) ( 50,599) ( 288) ( 92,053) ( 347,907)

Income tax expen ( 69,774) ( 2,418) ( 2,169) ( 27,600) ( 101,961)
Investmer income ( 217,881) - - 213,725  ( 4,156) (Note)

(loss) accounted for

under the equity

method

Segment sset: - - - - -

Gamanii Gameastc

For the nine-month Digital Digital

period ended Entertainment  Entertainment Gash Plus
Septembe 30, 2010 Co., Ltd. Co, Ltd. Co, Ltd. Other: Total
Revenu from externa

customers $ 3,135,158  § 414,325  § - § 820,741 $ 4,370,224
Inter-segment reenue 4,856 39,178 i 172,439 216,473
Segment prof (loss, 169,221 23,124 - | 22,977) 169,368
Depreciation an

amoriizatior ( 222,041) ( 64,909) - 64,600) ( 351,550)

Income tax expen ( 123,193) ( 5,915) - ( 21,454) ( 150,562)
Investmer income ( 224,306) - - 218,916 ( 5,390) (Note)

(loss) accounted for
under the equity
method

Segment asse - - - - -

Note: The inter-segment investment income or loss leas keliminated.
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(4) Reconciliation information of segment profivgk), assets and liabilities

The segment reports provided to the chief operatiegision-maker are measured in a manner
consistent with that used for the income statemeimhere is no difference between the presentation o
segment report and income statement and accordimglseconciliation is required to be disclosed.
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